	8				and all a	RECEIVE	CE
William R. S	TENNESS	EE DEPARTMENT C Division of V see Tower, 312 Rosa I 1-888-891	DF ENVIRONMENT Vater Resources Parks Avenue, 11th I-8332 (TDEC)	AND CONSEI Floor, Nashville ENVII	D RVATION	EC 9 201 se 37243 SSEE DEPT	19
Notice of Intent (NOI) for	General NPDES	Permit for Stormwate	er Discharges from C	onstruction Ac	tivities (T	NR400000)	OF
Site or Project Name: 3040 S	idco Drive			NPDES Tracki	ng		
Street Address 0040 Cides D	- Mashulla Th	07004		Construction S	Start Date:	02/01/2020	1
ur Location: 3040 Sluco D	r, ivasnville, Tiv	37204		Estimated End	I Date:	02/01/2021	
Site Mixed use office	space and stru	ctured parking		Latitude (dd.dd	ddd):	36.098604	
County(ies): Davidson		MS4 (if applicable): Y	/es	Acres Disturbe	ndiada).	-60.700297	
Check box if a SWPPP is attach	ed I Chec	k box if a site location n	nap is attached:	Total Acres:		7.18	
Check the appropriate box(s) if the	here are streams	and/or wetlands on or a	adjacent to the constru	iction site:	Streams	Wetlands	
las a jurisdictional determination lote: if yes, attach the jurisdictic	n been made by t mal determination	he USACE or EPA ider	htifying waters of the U	Inited States?:	Yes [] No	D
Receiving waters: Browns Cree	ek	has been obtained for th	nis site, what is the pe	rmit number / ivi			
Site Owner/Developer (Primar) over construction plans and spec	y Permittee): (Pro cifications): 304	ovide person, company 0 SIDCO DRIVE LF	, or entity that has ope >	rational or desig	n control	9	
For corporate entities only, provi an incorrect SOS control numbe	de correct Tenne er may delay NOI	ssee Secretary of State processing)	e (SOS) Control Numb	^{ber:} 0010558	51	8	******
Site Owner or Developer Contac Ryan McClay	t Name: (signs th	e certification below)	Title or Position: Owner	niidiseoq arii			
Mailing Address: 720 East Mai	n St Suite 820		City: Stamford	State: C	Т	Zip: 06902	
Phone: (203) 286-5812	Fax ()		E-mail: rmcclay@	forstonecapital	.com	2	
Optional Contact:			Title or Position:		*****		
Mailing Address:			City:	State	20	Zip:	
Phone: ()	Fax: ()		E-mail:			******	
)wner/Developer(s) Certificat	ion: (must be sign	ed by president, vice-pri	esident or equivalent, o	r ranking elected	official) (P	rimary Permitte	ee)
certify under penalty of law that this best of my knowledge and belief, tr possibility of fine and imprisonment. A	document and all at ue, accurate, and c s specified in Tenne	tachments were prepared I complete. I am aware that ssee Code Annotated Sect	by me, or under my directi t there are significant per tion 39-16-702(a)(4), this o	ion or supervision. nalties for submitti declaration is made	The submitting false information	ed information is ormation, includi alty of perjury.	s to the ing the
Dwner/Developer Name (print/typ	e): Ryan McCla	ay	Signature:	12-	C/ Date	n/20/1	9
Owner/Developer Name (print/typ	pe)		Signature:	2	Date		1
Contractor Certification: (must certify under penalty of law that I ha wwner/developer identified above and accurate. I am aware that this NOI, if my activities on-site are thereby regu and for failure to comply with these benalty of perjury.	be signed by pre- ve reviewed this doo d/or my inquiry of th approved, makes th lated. I am aware th permit requirements	esident, vice-president o cument, any attachments, a e person directly responsit ne above-described constru- nat there are significant per s. As specified in Tenness	or equivalent, or rankin and the SWPPP reference ole for assembling this NC action activity subject to NI natties, including the poss see Code Annotated Sect	ng elected officia d above. Based or DI and SWPPP, I b PDES permit numt ibility of fine and in Ion 39-16- 702(a)(al) (Second n my inquiry believe the in ber TNR100 nprisonment (4), this dec	dary Permittee of the construct nformation subm 000, and that ce for knowing vio laration is made	e) ion site itted is rtain of lations, e under
Contractor name, address, and F.W. Frierson Contractor, 29	SOS control num 71 Kraft Dr Nas	ber (if applicable): hville, TN 37204	Signature:	wy	Date	1/20/	19
FFICIAL STATE USE ONLY		ş			ç	1	
Received Date: CIG Review	er:	Field Office:	Permit Tracking Number:	TNR VQ 8	Exceptiona	I TN Water:	
	quatic Flora/Fauna	SOS Corporate Status	Waters with Lloweitable	Parameters	Notice of C	overage Data	

STONE & HOWORTH PLC 001298 **OPERATING ACCOUNT** 2606 EUGENIA AVE STE D 87-861/640 NASHVILLE, TN 37211-2119 E20, 19 DATE_ PAY TO THE ORDER OF 1\$ 1,000.00 theyour dollar NO + no/10) DOLLARS Details on back INSBANK MEMO 3040 SIDO SLUPPP MP A Section of the sect -

NASHVILLE ENVIRONMENTAL FIELD OFFICE RECEIVED

DECg 2019

ENVI

OWNER'S CERTIFICATION OF THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

GENERAL PERMIT FOR STORMWATER DISCHARGES FROM CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage this system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

Signature of Owper

Printed Name

Representative Title

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 3040 Sidco Drive

-----3040 Sidco Dr Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee

November 22, 2019



Prepared for:

Forstone Capital 750 East Main Street, Suite 820 Samford, CT 06902

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY1
1.1 Project Description1
1.1 Stormwater Pollution Controls2
1.1 Conclusion2
2.0 SWPPP IMPLEMENTATION RESPONSIBILITIES
2.1 Definitions2
2.2 Owner's/Operator's Responsibilities4
2.3 Owner's/Operator's Engineers Responsibilities6
2.4 Contractor's Responsibilities7
2.5 SWPPP Participants8
3.0 SITE CHARACTERISTICS
3.2 Soils9
3.3 Groundwater10
3.4 Topography10
3.5 Wetlands10
3.6 Surface Waters and Flood Plains10
3.7 Rainfall Data10
3.8 Pervious and Impervious Areas11
4.0 CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE
5.0 CONSTRUCTION PHASE POLLUTION CONTROLS
5.1 Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control Measures13

5.2 Permanent Erosion and Sediment Control Measures15
5.3 Other Pollutant Controls16
5.4 Construction Housekeeping Practices17
6.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN18
6.1 Stormwater Management Systems18
6.2 Hydrologic and Hydraulic Analysis18
6.3 Pre-Development Watershed Conditions20
6.4 Post-Development Watershed Conditions20
6.5 Hydrologic and Hydraulic Calculations21
6.6 Proposed Water Quantity and Quality Controls Error! Bookmark not defined.
7.0 INSPECTIONS, MAINTENANCE, AND REPORTING
7.1 Inspection and Maintenance Requirements22
7.1.1 Pro Construction Inspection and Cartification 99
7.1.2 Construction Phase Inspections and Maintenance
 7.1.1 Tre-Construction Inspection and Certification
 7.1.1 Tre-Construction Inspection and Certification
7.1.1 Tre-Construction Inspection and Certification
7.1.1 Tre-Construction Inspection and Certification 22 7.1.2 Construction Phase Inspections and Maintenance 22 7.1.3 Temporary Suspension of Construction Activities 23 7.1.4 Partial Project Completion 24 7.1.5 Post-Construction Inspections and Maintenance 24 7.2 Reporting Requirements 25
7.1.1 Tre-Construction Inspection and Certification
7.1.1 Tre-Construction Inspection and Certification

8.0	ONCLUSION	6
-----	-----------	---

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: USDA Soil Data	.9
Table 2: Rainfall Data	11
Table 3: Existing and Proposed Impervious Area	11

APPENDICES

Appendix A: TDEC General Permit TNR100000

- Notice of Intent (NOI)
- General Location Map
- Notice of Termination (NOT) (Sample Form)
- SWPPP Inspection Report (Sample Form)
- Appendix B: Figures
 - Soil Survey Report
 - Initial Erosion Control Plan
 - Intermediate Erosion Control Plan
 - Final Erosion Control Plan

Appendix C: Pre-Development Watershed Conditions Modeling

Appendix D: Post-Development Watershed Conditions Modeling

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This SWPPP has been prepared for activities associated with renovation of the existing building into a new office space, construction of associated structured parking, and miscellaneous landscaping at the project site located at 3040 Sidco Drive, Nashville, TN. This SWPPP includes the elements necessary to comply with the national baseline general permit for construction activities enacted by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program and all local governing agency requirements as specified by Nashville / Davidson County. This SWPPP must be implemented at the start of construction.

This SWPPP has been developed in accordance with the "Tennessee Department of the Environment and Conservation (TDEC) State Pollution Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) General Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction Activity" General Permit Number TNR100000, effective September 30, 2016 through September 30, 2021. The SWPPP and accompanying plans identify and detail stormwater management (SWM), pollution prevention, and erosion and sediment control measures necessary during and following completion of construction.

This SWPPP and the accompanying plans entitled "3040 Sidco Drive" have been submitted as a set. These engineering drawings are considered an integral part of this SWPPP, therefore this SWPPP is not considered complete without them. References made herein to "the plans" or to a specific "sheet" refer to these drawings.

This report considers the impacts associated with the intended development with the purpose of:

- 1. Maintaining existing drainage patterns as much as possible while continuing the conveyance of upland watershed runoff;
- 2. Controlling increases in the rate of stormwater runoff resulting from the proposed development so as not to adversely alter downstream conditions; and
- 3. Mitigating potential stormwater quality impacts and preventing soil erosion and sedimentation resulting from stormwater runoff generated both during and after construction.

The analysis and design completed and documented in this report is intended to be part of the application made for a grading permit from the Metro Water Services (MWS) Stormwater Division.

1.1 Project Description

Forstone Capital is proposing the construction of a new office space using the existing building on the property, as well as new structured parking. The property is located at 3040 Sidco Drive, Nashville, TN 37204.

This SWPPP includes post-construction stormwater management practices as well as erosion and sediment controls.

This project is located within a regulated, traditional land use control Municipal Separate Stormwater Sewer System (MS4).

Runoff from the project site will discharge via sheet flow at the north end of the property. The storm water travels via a combination of overland flow, roadside ditches, and storm infrastructure to a tributary of Browns Creek and ultimately flows into the Cumberland River.

Project construction activities will consist of site grading and construction of the proposed upgrades to the property. Construction phase pollutant sources anticipated at the site are disturbed (exposed) soil, vehicle fuels and lubricants, chemicals associated with building construction, and building materials. Without adequate control there is the potential for each type of pollutant to be transported by stormwater.

1.1 Stormwater Pollution Controls

The proposed measures outlined herein have been designed to mitigate erosion and pollution to adjacent properties due to surface runoff. These measures have been designed and evaluated in accordance with the following standards and guidelines:

- Tennessee Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook 4th Edition (August 2012).
- Supplemental Best Management Practices (BMP) Manual

1.1 Conclusion

This SWPPP has been prepared in conformance with the current Tennessee Standards and Specifications for Erosion and Sediment Control and Supplemental BMP Manual.

It is our opinion that the proposed development will not adversely impact adjacent or downstream properties if the erosion control measures are properly constructed and maintained in accordance with the requirements outlined herein.

2.0 SWPPP IMPLEMENTATION RESPONSIBILITIES

A summary of the responsibilities and obligations of all parties involved with compliance with the TDEC General Permit TNR100000 conditions is outlined in the subsequent sections. For a complete listing of the definitions, responsibilities, and obligations, refer to the TDEC General Permit TNR100000 presented in Appendix A.

2.1 Definitions

1. "Owner" or "Operator" means the person, persons, or legal entity which owns or leases the property on which the construction activity is occurring; and/or an entity that has operational control over the construction plans and specifications, including the ability to make modifications to the plans and specifications. There may be occasions during the course of a project in which there are multiple Owners/Operators, all of which will need to file and maintain the appropriate SWPPP documents and plans, including without limitation, the Notice of Intent (NOI), Notice of Coverage (NOC) and Notice of Termination (NOT).

- 2. "Owner's/Operator's Engineer" shall be that person or entity retained by an Owner/Operator to design and oversee the implementation of the SWPPP.
- 3. "Contractor" shall be that person or entity identified as such in the construction contract with the Owner/Operator. The term "Contractor" shall also include the Contractor's authorized representative, as well as any and all subcontractors retained by the Contractor.
- 4. "Qualified Inspector" means a person that is knowledgeable in the principles and practices of erosion and sediment control, such as licensed Professional Engineer, Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control (CPESC), licensed Landscape Architect, or other Department endorsed individual(s).

It can also mean someone working under the direct supervision of and at the same company as, the licensed Professional Engineer or licensed Landscape Architect, provided that person has training in the principles and practices of erosion and sediment control. Training in the principles and practices of erosion and sediment control means that an individual performing a site inspection has passed the TDEC Level 1 Certification.

Note: Inspections of any post-construction stormwater management practices that include structural components, such as a dam for an impoundment, shall be performed by a licensed Professional Engineer.

- 5. "Qualified Professional" means a person that is knowledgeable in the principles and practices of stormwater management and treatment, such as a licensed Professional Engineer, licensed Landscape Architect, or other Department endorsed individual(s). Individuals preparing SWPPPs that require the post-construction stormwater management practice component must have an understanding of the principles of hydrology, water quality management practice design, water quantity control design, and, in many cases, the principles of hydraulics in order to prepare a SWPPP that conforms to the Department's technical standards. All components of the SWPPP that involve the practice of engineering, shall be prepared by, or under the direct supervision of, a professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Tennessee.
- 6. "Trained Contractor" means an employee from a contracting (construction) company that has received training, which has been endorsed by the Department, from a Soil and Water Conservation District, CPESC, Inc. or other Department endorsed entity, in proper erosion and sediment control principles.

It can also mean an employee from the contracting (construction) company that meets the "qualified inspector" qualifications (e.g. licensed Professional Engineer, Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control (CPESC), Registered Landscape Architect, or someone working under the direct supervision of, and at the same company as, the licensed Professional Engineer or Registered Landscape Architect, provided they meet or exceed TDEC requirements).

The "trained contractor" will be responsible for the day to day implementation of the SWPPP.

2.2 Owner's/Operator's Responsibilities

- 1. Retain the services of a "Qualified Professional", as defined under Section 2.1, to provide the services outlined in Section 2.3 "Owner's/Operator's Engineer's Responsibilities".
- 2. Pay any and all fees, get all permits as required by Nashville / Davidson County.
- 3. Retain the services of an independent certified materials testing and inspection firm operating under the direction of a licensed Professional Engineer to perform regular tests, inspections, and certifications of the construction materials used in the construction of all post-construction stormwater management practices.
- 4. Prior to the commencement of construction activity, identify the contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) that will be responsible for implementing the erosion and sediment control measures and stormwater management practices described in this SWPPP. Have each of these contractors and subcontractors identify at least one "Trained Contractor", as defined under Section 2.1, that will be responsible for the implementation of the SWPPP. Ensure that the Contractor has at least one "Trained Contractor" on site on a daily basis when soil disturbance activities are being performed.
- 5. Schedule a pre-construction meeting which shall include the necessary Metro Water Services representative(s), Owner's/Operator's Engineer, Contractor, and their subcontractors to discuss responsibilities as they relate to the implementation of this SWPPP.
- 6. Require the Contractor to fully implement the SWPPP prepared for the site by the Owner's/Operator's Engineer to ensure that the provisions of the SWPPP are implemented from the commencement of construction activity until all areas of disturbance have achieved final stabilization.
- 7. Maintain a copy of the General Permit (TN100000), NOI, NOC, SWPPP, inspection reports, Spill Prevention, Countermeasures, and Cleanup ("SPCC") Plan, inspection records, and other required records on the job site so that they may be made available to the regulatory agencies.

- 8. Post at the site, in a publicly accessible location, a copy of the General Permit (TN100000) and the twice weekly inspection reports.
- 9. Prepare a written summary of projects status with respect to compliance with the general permit at a minimum frequency of every three months during which coverage under the permit exists. The summary should address the status of achieving the overall goal of the SWPPP. The summary shall be maintained at the site in a publicly accessible location.
- 10. Prior to completion of all site work, ensure one of the following:
 - a) the post-construction stormwater management practice(s) and any right-ofway(s) needed to maintain such practice(s) have been deeded to the municipality in which the practice(s) is located,
 - b) for post-construction stormwater management practice(s) that are privately owned, the Owner/Operator has a deed restriction in place that requires operation and maintenance of the practice(s) in accordance with the operation and maintenance plan,
 - c) for post-construction stormwater management practice(s) that are owned by a public or private institution (e.g. school, college, university), or government agency or authority, the Owner/Operator has policy and procedures are in place that ensure operation and maintenance of the practice(s) in accordance with the operation and maintenance plan.
- 11. Request and receive all SWPPP records from the Owner's/Operator's Engineer and archive those records for a minimum of five years after the completion of work.
- 12. Require the implementation of the Post-Construction Inspections and Maintenance procedures outlined in Section 7.1.5.
- 13. The Owner/Operator must keep the SWPPP current at all times. At a minimum, the Owner/Operator shall amend the SWPPP:
 - a) Whenever the current provisions prove to be ineffective in minimizing pollutants in stormwater discharges from the project site;
 - b) Whenever there is a change in design, construction, or operation at the construction site that has or could have an effect on the discharge of pollutants; and
 - c) To address issues or deficiencies identified during an inspection by the "qualified inspector," the Department, or other Regulatory Authority.

2.3 Owner's/Operator's Engineers Responsibilities

- 1. Prepare the SWPPP using good engineering practices, best management practices, and in compliance with all federal, state, and local regulatory requirements.
- 2. Provide copies of the SWPPP to Metro Water Services once all signatures and attachments are complete.
- 3. Prepare a construction Site Log Book to be used in maintaining a record of all inspection reports generated throughout the duration of construction.
- 4. Participate in a pre-construction meeting with the Metro Water Services representative, Owner/Operator, Contractor, and their sub-contractors to discuss responsibilities as they relate to the implementation of this SWPPP.
- 5. Enter Contractor's information in Section 2.5 "SWPPP Participants" once a Contractor is selected by the Owner/Operator.
- 6. Retain the services of a TN licensed land surveyor to perform an as-built topographic survey of the completed post-construction stormwater management facilities. All new stormwater management facilities, including detention ponds, shall be contained within a maintenance easement and recorded on the final plan. If a stormwater management facility is not constructed, no As-Built Survey is required.
- 7. Conduct an initial assessment of the site prior to the commencement of construction and certify in an inspection report that the appropriate erosion and sediment control measures described within this SWPPP have been adequately installed and implemented to ensure overall preparedness of the site.
- 8. Provide on-site inspections to determine compliance with the SWPPP. Site inspections shall occur at an interval twice per week and at least 72 hours apart. An inspection report shall be completed at the completion of each inspection and included with the onsite SWPPP documents. A sample inspection form is provided in Appendix A.
- 9. Review the Contractor's SWPPP records on a periodic basis to ensure compliance with the requirements for daily reports and inspections and maintenance logs.
- 10. Maintain the construction Site Log Book throughout the duration of construction.
- 11. Update the SWPPP each time there is a significant modification to the pollution prevention measures or a change of the principal Contractor working on the project who may disturb site soil.

- 12. Based on the as-built survey and material testing certifications performed by others, perform evaluations of the completed stormwater management facilities to determine whether they were constructed in accordance with this SWPPP.
- 13. Conduct a final site assessment and prepare a certification letter to the Owner/Operator indicating that, upon review of the material testing and inspection reports prepared by the firm retained by the Owner/Operator, completion of the topographic survey, and evaluation of the completed stormwater management facilities, the stormwater management facilities have been constructed substantially in accordance with the contract documents and should function as designed.
- 14. Transfer the SWPPP documents, along with all permit certificates, construction Site Log Book, and written records required by the General Permit to the Owner/Operator for archiving.

2.4 Contractor's Responsibilities

- 1. Identify at least one Trained Contractor that will be responsible for implementation of this SWPPP. Ensure that at least one Trained Individual is on site on a daily basis when soil disturbance activities are being performed.
- 2. Provide the names and addresses of all subcontractors working on the project site. Require all subcontractors who will be involved with construction activities that will result in soil disturbance to identify at least one Trained Contractor that will be on site on a daily basis when soil disturbance activities are being performed; and to sign a copy of the Contractor's Certification Form and forward to the Owner's/Operator's Engineer for inclusion into the Site Log Book. This information must be retained as part of the Site Log Book.
- 3. Maintain a Spill Prevention and Response Plan in accordance with requirements outlined in Section 5.4 of this SWPPP. This plan shall be provided to the Owner's/Operator's Engineer for inclusion in the Site Log Book.
- 4. Participate in a pre-construction meeting which shall include the Metro Water Services representative, Owner/Operator, Owner's/Operator's Engineer, and all subcontractors to discuss responsibilities as they relate to the implementation of this SWPPP.
- 5. Implement site stabilization (temporary and permanent), erosion and sediment control measures, and other requirements of the SWPPP.
- 6. Conduct daily inspections of erosion and sediment control measures installed at the site to ensure that they remain in effective operating condition at all times. Prepare, and retain written documentation of inspections as well as of all repairs/maintenance activities performed. This information must be retained as part of the Site Log Book.

- 7. Maintain a record of the dates when major grading activities occur, when construction activities temporarily or permanently cease on a portion of the site, and when stabilization measures are initiated. A log for keeping such records is provided in Appendix A.
- 8. Begin implementing corrective actions within one business day of receipt of notification by the Qualified Inspector that deficiencies exist with the erosion and sedimentation control measures employed at the site. Corrective actions shall be completed within a reasonable time frame.

2.5 SWPPP Participants

1.	Owner's/Operator's Engineer:	S + H Group, LLC 2606 Eugenia Avenue, Suite D Nashville, TN 37211 Phone: (615) 647-8775
2.	Owner/Operator:	Forstone Capital 750 East Main St Ste 820 Stamford, CT 06902
3.	Contractor:	T.W. Frierson Contractor, Inc. 2971 Kraft Drive Nashville, TN 37204 Phone: (615) 367-1333 Contact: Luke Maddox

3.0 SITE CHARACTERISTICS

3.1 Land Use

The subject site for the proposed construction is located at the address of 3040 Sidco Drive, Nashville, TN 37204. The subject site is identified as tax parcel number 13204001000 and the total parcel size is approximately 7.22 (+/-) acres as part of an overall campus shown on the drawings.

The subject site is currently developed with existing storm water infrastructure carrying surface runoff north of the project location. Runoff contributes to Browns Creek and ultimately flows into the Cumberland River approximately 4 mi to the north via overland flow. The project will not be affecting existing stormwater drainage patterns and will continue to be directed to the north end of the lot where it will exit the property via overland sheet flow.

3.2 Soils

The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS) Soil Survey for Davidson County was reviewed and provided surficial soil conditions for the study area. The SCS identified the presence of Maury-Urban land complex soil type across the project site. Soil data provided by the SCS is presented in Table 1.

			S	SOIL PROFILE		Ν	
MAP SYMBOL/ DESCRIPTION GROUP	DEPTH (IN)	USDA TEXTURE	K Sat (in/hr)	DEPTH TO WATER TABLE (IN)	DEPTH TO BEDROCK (IN)		
McB – Maury- Urban land complex	В	2-7	$0-7 \\ 7-24 \\ 24-65$	Silt loam Silty clay loam Silty clay	0.60- 6.00	>80	>80

Table 1: USDA Soil Data

The Soil Conservation Service defines the hydrologic soil groups as follows:

- <u>Type A Soils:</u> Soils having a high infiltration rate and low runoff potential when thoroughly wet. These soils consist mainly of deep, well drained to excessively drained sands or gravelly sands. These soils have a moderate rate of water transmission.
- <u>Type B Soils:</u> Soils having a moderate infiltration rate when thoroughly wet and consists mainly of moderately deep to deep, moderately well to well drained soils with moderately fine to moderately course textures. These soils have a moderate rate of water transmission.
- <u>Type C Soils</u>: Soils having a low infiltration rate when thoroughly wet and consists chiefly of soils with a layer that impedes downward movement of water and soils

with moderately fine-to-fine texture. These soils have a low rate of water transmission.

• <u>Type D Soils:</u> Soils having a very low infiltration rate and high runoff potential when thoroughly wet. These soils consist chiefly of clays that have high shrink-swell potential, soils that have a permanent high-water table, soils that have a clay pan or clay layer at or near the surface, and soils that are shallow over nearly impervious material. These soils have a very low rate of water transmission.

The soils information for the study area is presented in Appendix B.

3.3 Groundwater

Depth to groundwater is noted as being greater than 80 inches in the Maury-Urban land complex soil region, according to USDA Soil Conservation Service Soil Survey for Davidson County as shown in Table 1 "USDA Soil Data".

3.4 Topography

The overall subject site has fairly steep sloping in the southwest and north ends of the site, with slopes ranging from approximately 3-35 percent. Site elevations range from approximately 609 feet above sea level to 583 feet above sea level.

3.5 Wetlands

According to the National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) mapping¹, there are no wetlands in the project vicinity. The nearest NWI wetland is a freshwater forested/shrub wetland located approximately 0.4 miles away to the southwest of the project site.

3.6 Surface Waters and Flood Plains

According to the most recently available GIS data there are no mapped regulated streams on the subject site and no portion of the subject site is located in the 100-year FEMA Flood Zone.

3.7 Rainfall Data

Rainfall data utilized in the modeling and analysis was taken from National Weather Service (NWS) Technical Paper 40 (TP-40), Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the U.S. Weather Bureau, published by the U.S. Department of Commerce. Rainfall data specific to the portion of Nashville, TN under consideration, for various 24-hour storm events, are presented in Table 2:

¹ National Wetlands Inventory, Wetlands Digital Data, Available online at http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Mapper.html, site accessed 6/19/19.

STORM EVENT	24-HOUR RAINFALL
2-year	3.39–inches
5-year	4.50–inches
10-year	5.23–inches
25-year	6.16–inches
50-year	6.85—inches
100-year	7.53–inches

Table 2: Rainfall Data

These values were used to evaluate the pre- and post-development stormwater runoff conditions.

3.8 Pervious and Impervious Areas

The following comparison of the existing and proposed impervious areas was also used for the stormwater calculations. A summary of the existing and proposed (acres) conditions are presented in Table 3:

	Existing (Acres)	Proposed (Acres)
Total Lot Area	7.18	7.18
Total Pervious	1.73	1.27
Total Impervious	5.45	5.91

Table 3: Existing and Proposed Impervious Area

3.9 Percolation Testing

An infiltration test was not performed at the project site.

4.0 CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

Described below are the major construction activities that are the subject of this SWPPP. They are presented in the order (or sequence) they are expected to begin, but each activity will not necessarily be completed before the next begins. Also, these activities could occur in a different order if necessary, to maintain adequate erosion and sediment control.

The Contractor will be responsible for implementing the following erosion and sediment control measures. The Contractor may designate these tasks to certain subcontractors as the contractor sees fit, but the ultimate responsibility for implementing these controls and ensuring their proper function remains with the Contractor. The order of activities will be as follows:

1. Prior to the commencement and earth moving the contractor is to verify that all EPSC measures have been installed in accordance with the plans and specifications.

- 2. Selectively clear only the areas required for the installation of the stabilized construction entrances/exits and erosion and sediment control measures.
- 3. Install stabilized construction entrances/exits for all construction entrances/exits. This will be the first construction work on the project. This project is surrounded by paved roads that will remain in place throughout the duration of the project. It is intended that all construction vehicles will remain on existing pavement, so no construction entrance/exit is proposed.
- 4. Install sediment control barriers down slope from construction activities that disturb site soil. Refer to the plans for the slit-fence location.
- 5. Transplant all identified trees and shrubs.
- 6. Begin clearing and grubbing operations. Clearing and grubbing shall be done only in areas where earthwork will be performed and only in areas where construction is planned to commence within 15 days after clearing and grubbing.
- 7. Frequent watering of the excavation and fill areas shall be done to minimize wind erosion.
- 8. Commence site grading and other construction activities.
- 9. Install stormwater infrastructure including conveyance systems and detention basins. All detention area shall be protected from construction traffic and other construction site sediments though the use of silt fence.
- 10. Disturbed areas of the site, where construction activity has ceased for more than 15 days, shall be temporarily or permanently seeded, mulched, and watered in accordance to the seeding schedule on the plans.
- 11. Remove stabilized construction entrance(s) only prior to final stabilization (These areas are to be removed last).
- 12. Carry out final grading, seeding, mulching, and landscaping.
- 13. Complete final ground stabilization including the placement of sod.
- 14. Remove silt fencing only after all exposed tributary surfaces are stabilized.
- 15. Complete on-site final stabilization.
- 16. Remove temporary sediment controls only after all paving is complete and exposed surfaces are completely stabilized, and cleanout all stormwater collection conveyance, and treatment facilities.

5.0 CONSTRUCTION PHASE POLLUTION CONTROLS

The SWPPP and accompanying plans identify the temporary and permanent erosion and sediment control measures that have been incorporated into the design of this project. These measures will be implemented during construction, to minimize soil erosion and control sediment transport off-site, and after construction, to control the quality and quantity of stormwater runoff from the developed site.

Erosion control measures, designed to minimize soil loss, and sediment control measures, intended to retain eroded soil and prevent it from reaching water bodies or adjoining properties, have been developed in accordance with the following documents:

• Tennessee Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook – 4th Edition (August 2012).

The SWPPP and accompanying plans outline the construction scheduling for implementing the erosion and sediment control measures. The SWPPP and accompanying plans include limitations on the duration of soil exposure, criteria and specifications for placement and installation of the erosion and sediment control measures, a maintenance schedule, and specifications for the implementation of erosion and sediment control practices and procedures.

Temporary and permanent erosion and sediment control measures that shall be applied during construction generally include:

- 1. Minimizing soil erosion and sedimentation by stabilization of disturbed areas and by removing sediment from construction-site discharges.
- 2. Preservation of existing vegetation as much as possible. Following the completion of construction activities in any portion of the site permanent vegetation shall be established on all exposed soils.
- 3. Site preparation activities shall be planned to minimize the area and duration of soil disruption.
- 4. Permanent traffic corridors shall be established and "routes of convenience" shall be avoided.

5.1 Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control Measures

Temporary erosion and sediment control measures are included as part of the construction documents and are designed to control the rainfall from a 2-year, 24-hour return interval storm. These generally include the following:

1. Stabilized Construction Entrance

Prior to construction, stabilized construction entrances will be installed, as shown on the detail plan, to reduce the tracking of sediment onto public roadways. For this project the exiting driveway shall be used to minimize ground disturbance. Construction traffic must enter and exit the site at the stabilized construction entrance. The intent is to trap dust and mud that would otherwise be carried offsite by construction traffic.

The entrance shall be maintained in a condition, which will control tracking of sediment onto public rights-of-way or streets. When necessary, the placement of additional aggregate atop the filter fabric will be done to assure the minimum thickness is maintained. All sediments and soils spilled, dropped, or washed onto the public rights-of-way must be removed immediately. Periodic inspection and needed maintenance shall be provided after each substantial rainfall event.

2. Dust Control

Water trucks or hoses shall be used as needed during construction to reduce dust generated on the site. Dust control must be provided by the general Contractor to a degree that is acceptable to the Owner, and in compliance with the applicable local and state dust control requirements.

3. Temporary Soil Stockpile

Materials, such as topsoil, will be temporarily stockpiled (if necessary) on the site during the construction process. Stockpiles shall be located in an area away from storm drainage, water bodies and/or courses, and will be properly protected from erosion by a surrounding silt fence barrier.

4. Silt Fencing

Prior to the initiation of and during construction activities, a geotextile filter fabric (or silt fence) will be established along the perimeter of areas to be disturbed as a result of the construction, which lie up gradient of water courses or adjacent properties. These barriers may extend into non-impact areas to ensure adequate protection of adjacent lands.

Clearing and grubbing will be performed only as necessary for the installation of the sediment control barrier. To ensure effectiveness of the silt fencing, daily site personnel will perform inspections and inspections immediately after significant storm events. Maintenance of the fence will be performed as needed. Trapped sediment is to be removed from sediment controls at or before 50% design capacity.

5. Temporary Seeding

Within 15 days after construction activity ceases on any particular area of the site, all disturbed areas where there will not be construction for longer than 15 days shall be temporarily seeded and mulched to minimize erosion and sediment loss. Temporary seeding shall be performed in accordance with the Tennessee Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook. The table below provides temporary seeding guidelines:

Species	Rate (lb/acre)			
Rye	120			
Seeding dates				
East	Above 2500 feet: Feb. 15 - May 15			
	Below 2500 feet: Feb. 1- May 1			
Middle	Jan. 1 - May 1			
West	Dec. 1 - Apr. 15			
Soil amendme	ents			
Follow recomm	nendations of soil tests or apply 2,000	lb/acre	ground	agricultural
limestone and 7	50 lb/acre 10-10-10 fertilizer.		-	0

Mulch

Apply 4,000 lb/acre straw. Anchor straw by tacking with asphalt, netting, or a mulch anchoring tool. A disk with blades set nearly straight can be used as a mulch anchoring tool.

Maintenance

Refertilize if growth is not fully adequate. Reseed, refertilize and mulch immediately following erosion or other damage.

5.2 Permanent Erosion and Sediment Control Measures

Permanent erosion and sediment control measures are included as part of the construction documents and include the following:

1. Establishment of Permanent Vegetation

Disturbed areas that will be vegetated must be seeded in accordance with the contract documents. The type of seed, mulch, and maintenance measures as described in the contract documents shall also be followed.

All areas at final grade must be seeded and mulched within 14 days after completion of the major construction activity. All seeded areas should be protected with mulch.

Final site stabilization is achieved when all soil-disturbing activities at the site has been completed and a uniform, perennial vegetative cover with a density of 80 percent has been established or equivalent stabilization measures (such as the use of mulches or geotextiles) have been employed on all unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures. Permanent stabilization includes sod and or seeding based on the requirement of the Tennessee Erosion and Sediment control handbook and as outline in the table below. The project site is located within Region II.

	Zone	Best	Marginal	Rate/Mix (lb/ac PLS)
	Poorly drained soils	Feb 1 – Mar 20 Sept 1 – Sept 30	Mar 20 – Apr 30 Sept 30 – Oct 31	80 Pensacola bahiagrass 30 Bermudagrass (hulled) 20 Korean lespedeza** 10 Kobe lespedeza**
Region I	Well drained soils	Apr 1 – July 15		50 Pensacola bahiagrass 15 Bermudagrass (hulled) 30 Korean lespedeza** 15 Foxtail millet**
	High maintenance	Apr 1 – July 15		40 Bermudagrass (hulled)
Dogion	Low maintenance: Slopes and Poor, shallow soils	Aug 25 – Sept 15 Feb 15 – Mar 21	Sept 15 – Oct 25 Mar 21 – Apr 15	100 Pensacola bahiagrass 40 Bermudagrass (hulled) 20 Korean lespedeza** 10 Kobe lespedeza**
Region II	Low maintenance; Moderate slopes; soils >6 in. depth	Aug 25 – Sept 15 Feb 15 – Mar 21	Sept 15 – Oct 25 Mar 21 – Apr 15	80 Pensacola bahiagrass 30 Bermudagrass (hulled) 20 Korean lespedeza** 10 Kobe lespedeza**
	High maintenance	Aug 15 – Oct 15	Feb 15 – Apr 15	200 KY 31 fescue**

5.3 Other Pollutant Controls

Control of sediments has been described previously. Other aspects of this SWPPP are listed below:

1. Solid Waste Disposal

No solid materials, including building materials, are allowed to be discharged from the site with stormwater. All solid waste, including disposable materials incidental to the major construction activities, must be collected and placed in containers. The containers will be emptied periodically by a contract trash disposal service and hauled away from the site.

Substances that have the potential for polluting surface and/or groundwater must be controlled by whatever means necessary in order to ensure that they do not discharge from the site. As an example, special care must be exercised during equipment fueling and servicing operations. If a spill occurs, it must be contained and disposed so that it will not flow from the site or enter groundwater, even if this requires removal, treatment, and disposal of soil. In this regard, potentially polluting substances should be handled in a manner consistent with the impact they represent.

2. Sanitary Facilities

Temporary sanitary facilities will be provided by the Contractor throughout the construction phase. They must be utilized by all construction personnel and will be serviced by a commercial Contractor. These facilities must comply with state and local sanitary or septic system regulations.

3. Water Source

Non-stormwater components of site discharge must be clean water. Water used for construction, which discharges from the site, must originate from a public water supply or private well approved by the Health Department. Water used for construction that does not originate from an approved public supply must not discharge from the site. It can be retained in the ponds until it infiltrates and evaporates.

4. Long-Term Pollutant Controls

In addition to the permanent stormwater management facilities, identified on the accompanying plans, stormwater pollutant control measures installed during construction that will also provide benefits after construction include temporary sediment basins and rip-rapped outfalls. Temporary sediment basins that do not interfere with normal operations and appear to provide long-term benefits may be left in place after construction is completed, as directed by the Operator.

5.4 Construction Housekeeping Practices

During the construction phase, the general Contractor will implement the following measures:

- 1. Material resulting from the clearing and grubbing operation will be stockpiled up slope from adequate sedimentation controls.
- 2. The general Contractor will designate areas for equipment cleaning, maintenance, and repair. The general Contractor and subcontractors will utilize those areas.
- 3. The use of detergents for large scale washing is prohibited (i.e., vehicles, buildings, pavement surfaces, etc.)
- 4. Spill Prevention and Response

A Spill Prevention and Response Plan shall be developed for the site by the Contractor. The plan shall detail the steps needed to be followed in the event of an accidental spill and shall identify contact names and phone numbers of people and agencies that must be notified.

The plan shall include Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for all materials to be stored on-site. All workers on-site will be required to be trained on safe handling and spill prevention procedures for all materials used during construction. Regular tailgate safety meetings shall be held and all workers that are expected on the site during the week shall be required to attend.

5. Material Storage

Construction materials shall be stored in a dedicated staging area. The staging area shall be located in an area that minimizes the impacts of the construction materials effecting stormwater quality.

Chemicals, paints, solvents, fertilizers, and other toxic material must be stored in waterproof containers. Except during application, the contents must be kept in trucks or within storage facilities. Runoff containing such material must be collected, removed from the site, treated and disposed at an approved solid waste or chemical disposal facility.

6.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

The goals of this Stormwater Management Plan are to analyze the peak rate of runoff under pre- and post-development conditions, to maintain the pre-development rate of runoff in order to minimize impacts to adjacent or downstream properties, and to minimize the impact of the quality to runoff exiting the site.

These objectives will be met by applying Best Management Practices (BMPs) to limit peak runoff rates.

6.1 Stormwater Management Systems

The existing site is predominantly impervious, as shown above in Table 3. The proposed construction disturbs enough area (greater than one acre) to warrant an erosion control plan, but the total additional impervious area added to the project site ultimately does not affect the stormwater flows for the project area.

The site was analyzed in pre and post-developed conditions and it was determined that the change in discharge rate because of the additional impervious post development stormwater controls will be mitigated by a bioretention pond, permeable pavers, and a water quality swale.

6.2 Hydrologic and Hydraulic Analysis

This report presents the pre-development and post-development features and conditions associated with surface water runoff within the study area. For both cases, the drainage patterns, drainage structures, soil types, and ground cover types are considered in this study.

1. Methodology

The methodology used for the hydrologic and hydraulic analysis was obtained from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service's (SCS) Technical Release No. 20, as utilized by the application program HydroCAD. HydroCAD, developed by Applied Microcomputer Systems of Chocorua, New Hampshire, is a Computer-Aided-Design (CAD) program for analyzing the hydrologic and hydraulic characteristics of a given watershed and associated stormwater management facilities. It utilizes the latest techniques to predict the consequences of any given storm.

HydroCAD has the capability of computing hydrographs (which represents discharge rates characteristic of specified watershed conditions, precipitation, and geologic factors) combining hydrographs and routing flows though pipes, streams and ponds. Documentation for HydroCAD can be found on their website: <u>http://www.hydrocad.net/</u>.

For this analysis, the watershed and drainage system were broken down into a network consisting of four types of components as described below:

- 1. Subcatchment: A relatively homogeneous area of land, which produces a volume and rate of runoff unique to that area.
- 2. Reach: Uniform streams, channels or pipes that convey stormwater from one point to another.
- 3. Pond: Natural or man-made impoundment, which temporarily stores stormwater runoff and empties in a manner determined by its geometry and the hydraulic structure located at its outlets.
- 4. Link: A multi-purpose mechanism used to introduce a hydrograph from another file.

Subcatchments, reaches, ponds and links are represented by hexagons, squares, triangles, and broken boxes respectively, on the watershed routing diagrams provided with the computations included in Appendix C and Appendix D.

2. Analysis

The analysis of hydrologic and hydraulic conditions and proposed stormwater management facilities, servicing the study area, was performed by dividing the tributary watershed into relative homogeneous sub-catchments. The separation of the watershed into sub-catchments was dictated by watershed conditions, methods of collection, conveyance, and points of discharge. Watershed characteristics for each subcatchment were then assessed from United States Geological Service (USGS) 7.5-minute topographic maps, aerial photographs, a topographical survey, soil surveys, site investigations, and land use maps. Proposed stormwater management facilities were designed and evaluated in accordance with the *TDEC Erosion & Sediment Control Handbook* and local regulatory requirements. The hydrologic and hydraulic analysis considered the SCS, Type II 24-hour storm events identified in Table 3.

Facility	94 Hour Storm Evont
Facility	24 Hour Storm Event
	2-year
	5-year
Bioretention Ponds and Detention Ponds	10-year
	25-year
	50-year
	100-year

Table 4: Design Events

3. Study Area and Design Points (DP)

The study area consists of an overall watershed that encompasses the project site. The project site is light to moderately sloping from west and east to the south east corner of the property. The project site was broken down into smaller watersheds, or subcatchments, to allow for analysis of runoff conditions for pervious and impervious areas. Subcatchments contribute to three Design Points (DP) located across the site, where stormwater leaves the project site.

A description of the design points and descriptions of each subcatchment are in Section 6.3 Pre-Development Watershed Conditions. Section 6.4 discusses the Post-Development Conditions as well as the proposed stormwater management features. Figures showing the watersheds and subcatchments are provided at the beginning of each of the hydraulic calculation section for pre- and post- watershed conditions.

6.3 Pre-Development Watershed Conditions

The Study Area Subcatchment Map has been provided in Appendix C. The results of the computer modeling used to analyze the overall watershed under pre-development conditions are presented in Appendix C. The pre-development discharge rates are presented in Table 5.

6.4 Post-Development Watershed Conditions

The proposed construction at the project site will increase the impervious area of the property. The analysis of post-development conditions considered existing drainage patterns, soil types, ground cover to remain, planned site development, site grading and, stormwater management facilities proposed as part of site improvements. While the design points have remained unchanged between the existing and proposed conditions, the percentage of impervious area has been updated to account for the increased runoff.

The breakdown of subcatchments for post-development conditions is presented in Appendix D. The results of the computer modeling used to analyze the overall watershed under post-development conditions are presented in Appendix D. A summary of the post-development discharge rates is presented in Table 5.

6.5 Hydrologic and Hydraulic Calculations

Comparison of pre- and post-development watershed conditions demonstrates that the peak rate of runoff from the subject site will not be increase and therefore will not pose a significant adverse impact to the adjacent or downstream properties or receiving water courses. Table 4 "Summary of Pre- and Post-Development Peak Discharge Rates" summarizes the results of the analyses for such comparison.

Pre- vs. Post-Development Discharge Rate (cfs)												
Design	2- y	year	5-year		10-year		25-year		50-year		100-year	
Point	24-hour		24-hour Storm		24-hour Storm		24-hour		24-hour		24-hour	
(DP)	(DP) Storm						Storm		Storm		Storm	
	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post	Pre	Post
1	19.53	14.43	27.13	25.95	32.10	31.60	38.38	36.55	43.03	40.55	47.59	43.50
2	3.17	0	4.72	0	5.74	0	7.04	0	8.01	0	8.96	0
3	Existing pump to remain: pre = post		Existing pump to remain: pre = post		Existing pump to remain: pre = post		Existing pump to remain: pre = post		Existing pump to remain: pre = post		Existing pump to remain: pre = post	

 Table 5: Summary of Pre- & Post-Development Peak Discharge Rates

The results of the computer modeling used to analyze the stormwater management system under pre- and post-development conditions are presented in Appendix C and Appendix D, respectively.

7.0 INSPECTIONS, MAINTENANCE, AND REPORTING

7.1 Inspection and Maintenance Requirements

7.1.1 Pre-Construction Inspection and Certification

Prior to the commencement of construction, the Owner's/Operator's Engineer shall conduct an assessment of the site and certify that the appropriate erosion and sediment control measures have been adequately installed and implemented. The Contractor shall contact the Owner's/Operator's Engineer once the erosion and sediment control measures have been installed.

7.1.2 Construction Phase Inspections and Maintenance

A Qualified Inspector, as defined in the General Permit TNR-100000, shall conduct regular site inspections between the time this SWPPP is implemented and final site stabilization. Site inspections shall occur at an interval of at least once every seven calendar days.

The purpose of site inspections is to assess performance of pollutant controls. Based on these inspections, the qualified inspector will decide whether it is necessary to modify this SWPPP, add or relocate sediment barriers, or whatever else may be needed in order to prevent pollutants from leaving the site via stormwater runoff. The general contractor has the duty to cause pollutant control measures to be repaired, modified, maintained, supplemented, or whatever else is necessary in order to achieve effective pollutant control.

Examples of particular items to evaluate during site inspections are listed below. This list is not intended to be comprehensive. During each inspection the inspector must evaluate overall pollutant control system performance as well as particular details of individual system components. Additional factors should be considered as appropriate to the circumstances.

- 1. Locations where vehicles enter and exit the site must be inspected for evidence of off-site sediment tracking. A stabilized construction entrance will be constructed where vehicles enter and exit. This entrance will be maintained or supplemented as necessary to prevent sediment from leaving the site on vehicles.
- 2. Sediment barriers must be inspected and, if necessary, they must be enlarged or cleaned in order to provide additional capacity. All material from behind sediment barriers will be stockpiled on the up slope side. Additional sediment barriers must be constructed as needed.
- 3. Inspections will evaluate disturbed areas and areas used for storing materials that are exposed to rainfall for evidence of, or the potential for, pollutants entering the drainage system. If necessary, the materials must be covered or original covers must be repaired or supplemented.
- 4. Grassed areas will be inspected to confirm that a healthy stand of grass is maintained. The site has achieved final stabilization once all areas are covered with building foundation or pavement, or have a stand of grass with at least 80 percent density. The density of 80 percent or greater must be maintained to be considered

as stabilized. Areas must be watered, fertilized, and reseeded as needed to achieve this goal.

- 5. All discharge points must be inspected to determine whether erosion control measures are effective in preventing significant impacts to receiving waters.
- 6. The system shall be maintained and inspected according to the "Post-Construction Inspections and Maintenance" as outlined in Section I-01 of the "Tennessee Guide to Selection & Design of Stormwater BMPs".
- 7. Maintenance of the systems may include but not be limited to excavation and replacement of the infiltration bed every 5 years.

The inspection reports must be completed entirely and additional remarks should be included if needed to fully describe a situation. An important aspect of the inspection report is the description of additional measures that need to be taken to enhance plan effectiveness. The inspection report must identify whether the site was in compliance with the SWPPP at the time of inspection and specifically identify all incidents of noncompliance.

Within one business day of the completion of an inspection, the qualified inspector shall notify the Owner/Operator and appropriate contractor (or subcontractor) of any corrective actions that need to be taken. The contractor (or subcontractor) shall begin implementing corrective actions within one business day of this notification and shall complete the corrective actions in a reasonable time frame.

In addition to the inspections performed by the Owner's/Operator's Engineer, the Contractor shall perform routine inspections that include a visual check of all erosion and sediment control measures. All inspections and maintenance shall be performed in accordance with the inspection and maintenance schedule provided on the accompanying plans. Sediment removed from erosion and sediment control measures will be exported from the site, stockpiled for later use, or used immediately for general non-structural fill.

It is the responsibility of the general contractor to assure the adequacy of site pollutant discharge controls. Actual physical site conditions or contractor practices could make it necessary to install more structural controls than are shown on the accompanying plans. (For example, localized concentrations of runoff could make it necessary to install additional sediment barriers.) Assessing the need for additional controls and implementing them or adjusting existing controls will be a continuing aspect of this SWPPP until the site achieves final stabilization.

7.1.3 Temporary Suspension of Construction Activities

For constructions sites where soil disturbance activities have been temporarily suspended (e.g. Winter shutdown) and temporary stabilization measures have been applied to all disturbed areas, the frequency of Qualified Inspector inspections can be reduced to once every 30 calendar days. Prior to reducing the frequency of inspections, the Owner/Operator shall notify the Nashville Metro contact person in writing.

7.1.4 Partial Project Completion

For constructions sites where soil disturbance activities have been shut down with partial project completion, all areas disturbed as of the project shutdown date have achieved final stabilization, and all post-construction stormwater management practices required for the completed portion of the project have been constructed in conformance with the SWPPP and are operational, the Qualified Inspector inspections can stop. Prior to the shutdown, the Owner/Operator shall notify the Nashville Metro contact person in writing

7.1.5 Post-Construction Inspections and Maintenance

Inspections and maintenance of post-construction stormwater management facilities shall be performed by a Qualified Inspector, as defined herein, and shall conducted on an annual basis to ensure that the stormwater management systems are in place and operable. Inspections and maintenance include checking all cleanouts and removing any sediment that has collected in the system. The following areas of the system shall at a minimum be checked.

General System:

- 1. All cleanouts from downspouts.
- 2. All cleanouts related to the stormwater management system and identified in the plans.
- 3. All grates related to the storm water management system.
- 4. Visual inspection of the detention basins.
- 5. Visual inspection of the level spreaders

As Needed:

- 1. Inspect to insure that all vegetation is healthy and replace as necessary to ensure desired density.
- 2. Inspect and remove leaves and debris from inlets and outlets.
- 3. Inspect sumps for detention basin and clean if necessary.

Annually:

- 1. Spring inspection and cleanup
- 2. Inspect and replace vegetation as necessary
- 3. Inspect level spreaders, sumps and StormTech system.

Records shall be kept for all annual inspection in accordance to the Reporting Requirement in Section 7.2.

If any portion of the systems is found to damaged or not be functioning as designed the owner shall contract the engineer of record and or replace the portion of the system to meet the original design specifications.

7.2 Reporting Requirements

7.2.1 Inspection and Maintenance Reports

Inspection/maintenance reports shall be prepared prior to and during construction in accordance with the schedule outlined herein. The reports shall be prepared to identify and document the maintenance of the erosion and sediment control measures. A sample inspection form is provided in Appendix A and shall only be prepared if required by Nashville Metro.

Specifically, each inspection shall record the following information:

- 1. Date and time of inspection.
- 2. Name and title of person(s) performing inspection.
- 3. A description of the weather and soil conditions (e.g. dry, wet, saturated) at the time of the inspection.
- 4. A description of the condition of the runoff at all points of discharge (including conveyance systems and overland flow) from the construction site. This shall include identification of any discharges of sediment from the construction site.
- 5. A description of the condition of all natural surface waterbodies located within, or immediately adjacent to, the property boundaries of the construction site which receive runoff from disturbed areas. This shall include identification of any discharges of sediment to the surface waterbody.
- 6. Identification of all erosion and sediment control practices that need repair or maintenance.
- 7. Identification of all erosion and sediment control practices that were not installed properly or are not functioning as designed and need to be reinstalled or repaired.
- 8. Description and sketch of areas that are disturbed at the time of the inspection and areas that have been stabilized (temporary and/or final) since the last inspection.
- 9. Current phase of construction of all post-construction stormwater management practices and identification of all construction that is not in conformance with the SWPPP and technical standards.
- 10. Corrective action(s) that must be taken to install, repair, replace or maintain erosion and sediment control practices; and to correct deficiencies identified with the construction of the post-construction stormwater management practice(s).
- 11. Digital photographs, with date stamp, which show the condition of all practices that have been identified as needing corrective action or have undergone corrective action, must be attached to the associated inspection report.

7.2.2 Site Log Book

The Owner/Operator shall retain a copy of the SWPPP at the construction-site from the date of initiation of construction activities to the date of final stabilization.

During construction, the Owner's/Operator's Engineer shall maintain a record of all SWPPP inspection reports at the site in the Site Log Book. The Site Log Book shall be maintained on-site and made available to the permitting authority.

7.2.3 Post Construction Records and Archiving

Following construction, the Owner/Operator shall retain copies of the SWPPP, the complete construction Site Log Book, and records of all data used to complete the NOI to be covered by this permit, for a period of at least five years from the date that the site is finally stabilized.

8.0 CONCLUSION

S+H Group, LLC has completed a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan for the planned construction at 3040 Sidco Drive, Nashville, Davidson County Tennessee. The analysis included the review of watershed conditions, hydrologic and hydraulic analysis using computer modeling, and an evaluation of the proposed improvements across the subject site.

The Stormwater Management Plan allows for the maintenance of existing drainage patterns while continuing the conveyance of stormwater runoff from upland watershed areas.

The Stormwater Management Plan controls decrease in the stormwater rate of runoff resulting from the proposed development without adversely affecting downstream conditions. This is demonstrated by comparing pre- and post-development flows for various storm events. Table 5 "Summary of Pre- and Post-Development Peak Discharge Rates" summarizes the results of the analyses for such comparison.

The comparison of pre- and post-development watershed rate of runoff demonstrates that off-site peak flow conditions at the design points will pose no significant adverse impacts to the adjacent or downstream properties or receiving water courses.

Stormwater quality will be enhanced through the implementation of the proposed erosion and sediment control measures and maintenance practices outlines herein.

In conclusion, it is our opinion that the proposed development will not adversely impact adjacent or downstream properties if the stormwater management facilities are properly constructed and maintained in accordance with the requirements outlines herein.



Imagery ©2019 Google, Imagery ©2019 Landsat / Copernicus, Maxar Technologies, USDA Farm Service Agency, Map data ©2019 2000 ft 📖

3040 Sidco Drive – Nashville, TN Page 28

APPENDIX B

S+ H Group November 22, 2019



United States Department of Agriculture

Natural Resources Conservation Service A product of the National Cooperative Soil Survey, a joint effort of the United States Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local participants

Custom Soil Resource Report for Davidson County, Tennessee


Preface

Soil surveys contain information that affects land use planning in survey areas. They highlight soil limitations that affect various land uses and provide information about the properties of the soils in the survey areas. Soil surveys are designed for many different users, including farmers, ranchers, foresters, agronomists, urban planners, community officials, engineers, developers, builders, and home buyers. Also, conservationists, teachers, students, and specialists in recreation, waste disposal, and pollution control can use the surveys to help them understand, protect, or enhance the environment.

Various land use regulations of Federal, State, and local governments may impose special restrictions on land use or land treatment. Soil surveys identify soil properties that are used in making various land use or land treatment decisions. The information is intended to help the land users identify and reduce the effects of soil limitations on various land uses. The landowner or user is responsible for identifying and complying with existing laws and regulations.

Although soil survey information can be used for general farm, local, and wider area planning, onsite investigation is needed to supplement this information in some cases. Examples include soil quality assessments (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/) and certain conservation and engineering applications. For more detailed information, contact your local USDA Service Center (https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs) or your NRCS State Soil Scientist (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/? cid=nrcs142p2_053951).

Great differences in soil properties can occur within short distances. Some soils are seasonally wet or subject to flooding. Some are too unstable to be used as a foundation for buildings or roads. Clayey or wet soils are poorly suited to use as septic tank absorption fields. A high water table makes a soil poorly suited to basements or underground installations.

The National Cooperative Soil Survey is a joint effort of the United States Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local agencies. The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) has leadership for the Federal part of the National Cooperative Soil Survey.

Information about soils is updated periodically. Updated information is available through the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the site for official soil survey information.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require

alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

Contents

Preface	2
How Soil Surveys Are Made	5
Soil Map	8
Soil Map	9
Legend	10
Map Unit Legend	11
Map Unit Descriptions	11
Davidson County, Tennessee	
McB—Maury-Urban land complex, 2 to 7 percent slopes	13
References	15

How Soil Surveys Are Made

Soil surveys are made to provide information about the soils and miscellaneous areas in a specific area. They include a description of the soils and miscellaneous areas and their location on the landscape and tables that show soil properties and limitations affecting various uses. Soil scientists observed the steepness, length, and shape of the slopes; the general pattern of drainage; the kinds of crops and native plants; and the kinds of bedrock. They observed and described many soil profiles. A soil profile is the sequence of natural layers, or horizons, in a soil. The profile extends from the surface down into the unconsolidated material in which the soil formed or from the surface down to bedrock. The unconsolidated material is devoid of roots and other living organisms and has not been changed by other biological activity.

Currently, soils are mapped according to the boundaries of major land resource areas (MLRAs). MLRAs are geographically associated land resource units that share common characteristics related to physiography, geology, climate, water resources, soils, biological resources, and land uses (USDA, 2006). Soil survey areas typically consist of parts of one or more MLRA.

The soils and miscellaneous areas in a survey area occur in an orderly pattern that is related to the geology, landforms, relief, climate, and natural vegetation of the area. Each kind of soil and miscellaneous area is associated with a particular kind of landform or with a segment of the landform. By observing the soils and miscellaneous areas in the survey area and relating their position to specific segments of the landform, a soil scientist develops a concept, or model, of how they were formed. Thus, during mapping, this model enables the soil scientist to predict with a considerable degree of accuracy the kind of soil or miscellaneous area at a specific location on the landscape.

Commonly, individual soils on the landscape merge into one another as their characteristics gradually change. To construct an accurate soil map, however, soil scientists must determine the boundaries between the soils. They can observe only a limited number of soil profiles. Nevertheless, these observations, supplemented by an understanding of the soil-vegetation-landscape relationship, are sufficient to verify predictions of the kinds of soil in an area and to determine the boundaries.

Soil scientists recorded the characteristics of the soil profiles that they studied. They noted soil color, texture, size and shape of soil aggregates, kind and amount of rock fragments, distribution of plant roots, reaction, and other features that enable them to identify soils. After describing the soils in the survey area and determining their properties, the soil scientists assigned the soils to taxonomic classes (units). Taxonomic classes are concepts. Each taxonomic class has a set of soil characteristics with precisely defined limits. The classes are used as a basis for comparison to classify soils systematically. Soil taxonomy, the system of taxonomic classification used in the United States, is based mainly on the kind and character of soil properties and the arrangement of horizons within the profile. After the soil

scientists classified and named the soils in the survey area, they compared the individual soils with similar soils in the same taxonomic class in other areas so that they could confirm data and assemble additional data based on experience and research.

The objective of soil mapping is not to delineate pure map unit components; the objective is to separate the landscape into landforms or landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. Each map unit is defined by a unique combination of soil components and/or miscellaneous areas in predictable proportions. Some components may be highly contrasting to the other components of the map unit. The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the usefulness or accuracy of the data. The delineation of such landforms and landform segments on the map provides sufficient information for the development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous areas.

Soil scientists make many field observations in the process of producing a soil map. The frequency of observation is dependent upon several factors, including scale of mapping, intensity of mapping, design of map units, complexity of the landscape, and experience of the soil scientist. Observations are made to test and refine the soil-landscape model and predictions and to verify the classification of the soils at specific locations. Once the soil-landscape model is refined, a significantly smaller number of measurements of individual soil properties are made and recorded. These measurements may include field measurements, such as those for color, depth to bedrock, and texture, and laboratory measurements, such as those for content of sand, silt, clay, salt, and other components. Properties of each soil typically vary from one point to another across the landscape.

Observations for map unit components are aggregated to develop ranges of characteristics for the components. The aggregated values are presented. Direct measurements do not exist for every property presented for every map unit component. Values for some properties are estimated from combinations of other properties.

While a soil survey is in progress, samples of some of the soils in the area generally are collected for laboratory analyses and for engineering tests. Soil scientists interpret the data from these analyses and tests as well as the field-observed characteristics and the soil properties to determine the expected behavior of the soils under different uses. Interpretations for all of the soils are field tested through observation of the soils in different uses and under different levels of management. Some interpretations are modified to fit local conditions, and some new interpretations are developed to meet local needs. Data are assembled from other sources, such as research information, production records, and field experience of specialists. For example, data on crop yields under defined levels of management are assembled from farm records and from field or plot experiments on the same kinds of soil.

Predictions about soil behavior are based not only on soil properties but also on such variables as climate and biological activity. Soil conditions are predictable over long periods of time, but they are not predictable from year to year. For example, soil scientists can predict with a fairly high degree of accuracy that a given soil will have a high water table within certain depths in most years, but they cannot predict that a high water table will always be at a specific level in the soil on a specific date.

After soil scientists located and identified the significant natural bodies of soil in the survey area, they drew the boundaries of these bodies on aerial photographs and

identified each as a specific map unit. Aerial photographs show trees, buildings, fields, roads, and rivers, all of which help in locating boundaries accurately.

Soil Map

The soil map section includes the soil map for the defined area of interest, a list of soil map units on the map and extent of each map unit, and cartographic symbols displayed on the map. Also presented are various metadata about data used to produce the map, and a description of each soil map unit.



	MAP LEGEND)	MAP INFORMATION			
Area of Interest (A	NOI) 🗧	Spoil Area	The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at			
Area o	of Interest (AOI)	Stony Spot	1.13,600.			
Soils	an Unit Delvanna 🔊 🕅	Very Stony Spot	Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.			
Soli Ma		Wet Spot				
		Other	Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause			
	ap Unit Points	Special Line Features	line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of			
Special Point Fe	eatures ut Water Fea	atures	contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed scale			
Borrow Borrow	v Pit ~	Streams and Canals				
Bonor	Transpor	tation	Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map			
	+++	Rails	measurements.			
○ Closed		Interstate Highways	Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service			
Gravel	l Pit 📈 📈	US Routes	Web Soil Survey URL:			
Gravel	lly Spot 🦟	Major Roads	Coordinate System: vveb Mercator (EPSG:3857)			
🔇 Landfil	~	Local Roads	Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator			
👗 🛛 Lava F	Flow Backgrou	Ind	projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the			
📥 Marsh	or swamp	Aerial Photography	Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more			
🙊 Mine d	or Quarry		accurate calculations of distance or area are required.			
Miscel	laneous Water		This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as			
O Perenr	nial Water		of the version date(s) listed below.			
🤝 🛛 Rock (Dutcrop		Soil Survey Area: Davidson County, Tennessee			
🛶 Saline	Spot		Survey Area Data: Version 17, Sep 16, 2019			
Sandy	Spot		Soil man units are labeled (as space allows) for man scales			
Severe	ely Eroded Spot		1:50,000 or larger.			
Sinkho	ble		Data(a) parial imagan wara photographad: Jul 12, 2014 Aug			
👗 Slide d	or Slip		13, 2014			
Sodic S	Spot		-			
ци			compiled and digitized probably differs from the background imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.			

Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol	Map Unit Name	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI
МсВ	Maury-Urban land complex, 2 to 7 percent slopes	7.4	100.0%
Totals for Area of Interest		7.4	100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions

The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous areas.

An identifying symbol precedes the map unit name in the map unit descriptions. Each description includes general facts about the unit and gives important soil properties and qualities.

Soils that have profiles that are almost alike make up a *soil series*. Except for differences in texture of the surface layer, all the soils of a series have major horizons that are similar in composition, thickness, and arrangement.

Soils of one series can differ in texture of the surface layer, slope, stoniness, salinity, degree of erosion, and other characteristics that affect their use. On the basis of such differences, a soil series is divided into *soil phases*. Most of the areas shown on the detailed soil maps are phases of soil series. The name of a soil phase commonly indicates a feature that affects use or management. For example, Alpha silt loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is a phase of the Alpha series.

Some map units are made up of two or more major soils or miscellaneous areas. These map units are complexes, associations, or undifferentiated groups.

A *complex* consists of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas in such an intricate pattern or in such small areas that they cannot be shown separately on the maps. The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar in all areas. Alpha-Beta complex, 0 to 6 percent slopes, is an example.

An *association* is made up of two or more geographically associated soils or miscellaneous areas that are shown as one unit on the maps. Because of present or anticipated uses of the map units in the survey area, it was not considered practical or necessary to map the soils or miscellaneous areas separately. The pattern and relative proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar. Alpha-Beta association, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

An *undifferentiated group* is made up of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas that could be mapped individually but are mapped as one unit because similar interpretations can be made for use and management. The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas in a mapped area are not uniform. An area can be made up of only one of the major soils or miscellaneous areas, or it can be made up of all of them. Alpha and Beta soils, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

Some surveys include *miscellaneous areas*. Such areas have little or no soil material and support little or no vegetation. Rock outcrop is an example.

Davidson County, Tennessee

McB—Maury-Urban land complex, 2 to 7 percent slopes

Map Unit Setting

National map unit symbol: kknq Mean annual precipitation: 39 to 57 inches Mean annual air temperature: 48 to 70 degrees F Frost-free period: 190 to 205 days Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

Map Unit Composition

Maury and similar soils: 60 percent Urban land: 35 percent Minor components: 5 percent Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Description of Maury

Setting

Landform: Hillslopes Landform position (three-dimensional): Crest Parent material: Loess over clayey residuum and/or alluvium derived from limestone

Typical profile

H1 - 0 to 7 inches: silt loam H2 - 7 to 24 inches: silty clay loam H3 - 24 to 65 inches: silty clay

Properties and qualities

Slope: 2 to 7 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Natural drainage class: Well drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high to high (0.60 to 6.00 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water storage in profile: High (about 11.3 inches)

Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 2e Hydrologic Soil Group: B Hydric soil rating: No

Description of Urban Land

Typical profile

H1 - 0 to 6 inches: variable

Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 8s Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Minor components

Percent of map unit: 5 percent Hydric soil rating: No

References

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 2004. Standard specifications for transportation materials and methods of sampling and testing. 24th edition.

American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM). 2005. Standard classification of soils for engineering purposes. ASTM Standard D2487-00.

Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe. 1979. Classification of wetlands and deep-water habitats of the United States. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service FWS/OBS-79/31.

Federal Register. July 13, 1994. Changes in hydric soils of the United States.

Federal Register. September 18, 2002. Hydric soils of the United States.

Hurt, G.W., and L.M. Vasilas, editors. Version 6.0, 2006. Field indicators of hydric soils in the United States.

National Research Council. 1995. Wetlands: Characteristics and boundaries.

Soil Survey Division Staff. 1993. Soil survey manual. Soil Conservation Service. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 18. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/ nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262

Soil Survey Staff. 1999. Soil taxonomy: A basic system of soil classification for making and interpreting soil surveys. 2nd edition. Natural Resources Conservation Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 436. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577

Soil Survey Staff. 2010. Keys to soil taxonomy. 11th edition. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580

Tiner, R.W., Jr. 1985. Wetlands of Delaware. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control, Wetlands Section.

United States Army Corps of Engineers, Environmental Laboratory. 1987. Corps of Engineers wetlands delineation manual. Waterways Experiment Station Technical Report Y-87-1.

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. National forestry manual. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/ home/?cid=nrcs142p2 053374

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. National range and pasture handbook. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/ detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. National soil survey handbook, title 430-VI. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/ nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2006. Land resource regions and major land resource areas of the United States, the Caribbean, and the Pacific Basin. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 296. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/? cid=nrcs142p2_053624

United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service. 1961. Land capability classification. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 210. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf







3040 SIDCO DRIVE DESIGN DOCUMENTS

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 13204001000



METRO PUBLIC WORKS:

720 SOUTH 5TH STREET NASHVILLE, TN 37206 CONTACT: BEN YORK EMAIL: ben.york@nashville.gov PHONE: (615) 862-8782

METRO COUNCIL:

DISTRICT 16 COUNCIL MEMBER : MIKE FREEMAN MWS - STORMWATER:

800 2ND AVE S NASHVILLE, TN 37210 CONTACT: STEVE MISHU, PE EMAIL: steve.mishu@nashville.gov PHONE: (615) 862-4780

GRADING PERMIT NUMBER 2019059280

ADDRESS 3040 SIDCO DRIVE

-SITE LOCATION

PREPARED BY: S+H Group, LLC 2606 Eugenia Avenue Suite D Nashville, TN 37211

OWNER:

FORSTONE CAPITAL 750 EAST MAIN STREET, SUITE 820 STAMFORD, CT 06902 CONTACT: RYAN McCLAY EMAIL: rmcclay@forstonecapital.com PHONE: (203) 286-5812

BROKER / OWNERS REP:

JLL 1801 WEST END AVE. NASVHILLE, TN 37203 CONTACT: LOCHLIN CAFFEY EMAIL: lochlin.caffey@am.jll.com PHONE: (615) 218-2210



INDEX OF DRAWINGS

- C0.0 COVER SHEET
- C1.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS
- C2.0 INITIAL EPSC
- C2.1 INTERMEDIATE EPSC
- C2.2 FINAL EPSC
- DEMO PLAN C3.0 C4.0 SITE PLAN - A
- C4.1 SITE PLAN B
- **GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN A** C5.0 C5.1 GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN - B
- C5.2 PIPE CHART
- C6.0 UTILITY PLAN
- DETAILS C7.0
- C7.1 DETAILS
- C7.2 DETAILS
- DETAILS C7.3 C7.4 DETAILS

ARCHITECT:

DESIGN CONSTRUCTORS, INC. 2971 KRAFT DRIVE NASHVILLE, TN 37204 CONTACT: CRAIG POLANCICH EMAIL: cpolancich@designconstructorsinc.com PHONE: (615) 367-9878

CIVIL ENGINEER:

S+H GROUP, LLC 2606 EUGENIA AVE, SUITE D NASHVILLE, TN, 37211 CONTACT: JAMES NYQUIST, PE EMAIL: james@shgroupllc.com PHONE: (256) 708-1118

GENERAL CONTRACTOR:

T.W. FRIERSON CONTRACTOR INC. 2971 KRAFT DRIVE NASHVILLE, TN 37204 CONTACT: BEN MOSLEY EMAIL: bmosley@twfrierson.com PHONE: (615) 301-1938

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:

HODGSON DOUGLAS 507 MAIN STREET NASHVILLE, TN 37206 CONTACT: RICHIE JONES EMAIL: rjones@hodgsondouglas.com PHONE: (615) 953-5061













	PIPE CHART							STRUCTURE CHART			
FROM	From Invert	То	To Invert	SIZE (in)	Length (ft)	SLOPE (%)	MATERIAL	LOCATION	STRUCTURE	TOP OF CASTING	
A1	591.71	A2	591.40	18	65	0.5%	RCP	A1	3'x3' Area Drain	596.25	
A2	591.30	A3	590.88	18	84	0.5%	RCP	A2	3'x3' Area Drain	595.75	
A3	590,78	A4	590.52	18	51	0.5%	RCP	A3	3'x3' Area Drain	595.25	
A4	590.42	A5	590.12	18	59	0.5%	RCP	A4	3'x3' Area Drain	594.75	
A5	590.02	B7	589.75	18	53	0.5%	RCP	A5	Curb Inlet	594.00	
								B7	5' Manhole	594.00	
B1	591.44	B2	590.35	12	109	1.0%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	B1	4" Cleanout	596.10	
B3	591.85	B4	590.76	4	109	1.0%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	B2	4" Cleanout	593.33	
B4	590.76	B2	590.35	4	41	1.0%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	B3	4" Cleanout	596.25	
B2	590.35	B6	590.25	12	10	1.0%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	B4	4" Cleanout	593.75	
B5	592.73	B6	590.25	12	248	1.0%	HDPE	B5	Roof Drain (typ)	N/A	
B6	590.15	B7	589.65	18	110	0.5%	RCP	B6	Double Inlet Catch Basin	593.00	
87	589.55	B8	589.33	24	29	0.8%	RCP	B7	5' Manhole	594.00	
								B8	Outlet	589.33	
C1	593 32	C2	592.84	12	48	1.0%	HDPE	C1	2'x2' Area Drain	597.50	
C2	592.74	C3	592.26	12	48	1.0%	HDPE	C2	2'x2' Area Drain	597.50	
C3	592.16	C4	591.68	15	48	1.0%	HDPE	C3	2'x2' Area Drain	597.50	
C4	591.58	C5	591.10	15	48	1.0%	HDPE	C4	2'x2' Area Drain	597.50	
C5	591.00	C6	590.66	15	24	1.4%	RCP	C5	2'x2' Area Drain	597.50	
C6	590.56	C7	589.33	15	82	1.5%	RCP	C6	4' Manhole	593.50	
			1	Tech 14	- 1497		1000000	C7	Outlet	589.33	
						2210					
01	585.70	D2	585.40	6	60	0.5%	HOPE (PERFORATED)	D1	er cleanout	589.50	
02	585.40	04	585.30	6	19	0.5%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	D2	e Cleanout	589.50	
03	565.57	D4	585.30	6	54	0.5%	HOPE (PERFORATED)	03	er Cleanout	589.50	
04	505.30	De	565.20	0 C	19	0.5%	HOPE (PERFORATED)	04	6" Cleanout	509.50	
De	595.20	D10	595.10	e e	40	0.5%	HOPE (PERFORATED)	DG	6" Cleanout	589.50	
D7	595.20	De	585.20	e	20	0.5%		07	6" Cleanout	589.50	
DB	585.40	Da	585.20	6	20	0.5%	HOPE (PERFORATED)	DR	6" Cleanout	589.50	
D9	585.20	D10	585.10	6	20	0.5%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	D9	6" Cleanout	589.50	
D10	585.10	D11	585.00	6	20	0.5%	HOPE (PERFORATED)	D10	6" Cleanout	589.50	
D11	584.25	D12	583.00	19"x30"	250	0.5%	RCP	D11	Overflow Structure	589.50	
								D12	Outlet	583.00	
		r								Ĭ	
E1	591.50	E2	590.50	6	100	1.0%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	E1	6" Cleanout	596.00	
E2	590.50	E3	589.50	18	100	1.0%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	E2	6" Cleanout	595.00	
E3	589.50	E4	588.68	18	82	1.0%	HDPE (PERFORATED)	E3	6" Cleanout	594.00	
	. 1		1	1	1			EA	Ex Manhole	596.00	

DESCRIPTION OF REVISION						
DATE						
FORSTONE CAPITAL 750 EAST MAIN STREET STAMFORD, CT 06902			3040 SIDCO DRIVE			
"Thuman"	ALL	AME Zoiterr Zoiterr Adme	S N RED T199 TEN	Y Q U Y CO Y A CO Y Y A CO Y A		
S Date Scal Draw	2 NAS :: :: ::	6006 EU HVILLE TEL:	GENIA TN 37 615.64 11/2 1" =	EN0 DE5 CO1 211 SU1 211 SU1 211 SU1 22/19 = 30'	GINEEI SIGN <u>NSULT</u> E FE D	
Sheet			5		2	

FINAL STABILIZATION - NETTING OR MATTING (TCP-09) SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

SECTION

PLAN

SECTION

FLOW

(DITCH)

PLAN

CONCRETE POST CURB SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

C7.0

COMMERCIAL DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

REVIEWED BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

DOUBLE INLET CATCH BASIN SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

4 C7.1

3'X3' CATCH BASIN SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

STANDARD 5' CONCRETE MANHOLE SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

STANDARD 4' CONCRETE MANHOLE C7.1 SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

6

2" BACKFLOW PREVENTER SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

STANDARD SANITARY CLEANOUT SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

(5
7	C7.4

PLANTING NOTES

1. TREAT ALL GROUNDCOVER BEDS WITH PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE PRIOR TO PLANTING. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WEEDING UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

2. ALL PLANT BEDS TO BE NEATLY LAID IN WITH 3" DEEP TRENCH EDGING BORDER.

3. ALL GROUNDCOVER AND PLANT BEDS SHALL MEET LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S SPECIFICATIONS. FINAL GRADES FOR ALL PLANT BEDS SHALL BE 1" BELOW EDGE OF WALK OR CURBING SO THAT WHEN 3" OF MULCH IS ADDED THE MULCH WILL BE 2" ABOVE THE WALKS. TAPER MULCH DOWN TO EDGE OF WALK OR CURB.

4. ALL AREAS WITHIN PLANT BEDS TO BE MULCHED WITH 3" DEEP LAYER OF DECOMPOSED SHREDDED PINE BARK.

5. ALL TREES OF A SIMILAR SPECIES TO BE MATCHED IN SIZE AND UNIFORMITY.

6. CONTRACTOR TO WARRANTY ALL PLANTINGS FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR AFTER DATE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY OWNER. WARRANTY TO INCLUDE ALL DEFECTS INCLUDING DEATH OR UNSATISFACTORY GROWTH; EXCEPT FOR DEFECTS RESULTING FROM LACK OF ADEQUATE MAINTENANCE, NEGLECT OR ABUSE BY OWNER, OR ABNORMAL WEATHER CONDITIONS UNUSUAL FOR WARRANTY PERIOD.

7. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTENANCE OF PLANTS UNTIL TIME OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

8. PROVIDE TREES, SHRUBS, AND PLANTS OF QUALITY, SIZE, GENUS, SPECIES AND VARIETY SHOWN AND SCHEDULED FOR LANDSCAPE WORK AND COMPLYING WITH RECOMMENDATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF ANSI Z60.1 "AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK". PROVIDE HEALTHY, VIGOROUS STOCK, GROWN IN A RECOGNIZED NURSERY IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOOD HORTICULTURAL PRACTICE AND FREE OF DISEASE, INSECTS, EGGS, LARVAE, AND DEFECTS SUCH AS KNOTS, SUN-SCALD, INJURIES, ABRASIONS OR DISFIGUREMENT. HEIGHT AND WIDTH SHOWN ARE MINIMUM SIZES.

PLANTING SCHEDULE NOTES

. TREES TO BE OF THE HIGHEST GRADE AND PURCHASED FROM THESE SELECTED VENDORS ONLY:

SELECT TREES

CRAWFORD, GA - (706)743-5124 BOLD SPRINGS NURSERY

HAWKINSVILLE, GA - (478)783-4975

SHADY GROVE PLANTATION AND NURSERY

ORANGEBURG, SC - (803)534-5683 WATKINS NURSERIES

MIDLOTHIAN, VA. - (804)379-8733

HUNTER TREES NURSERY, LLC.

BIRMINGHAM, AL - (866)348-6837

HAWKERSMITH NURSERY

TULLAHOMA, TN - (931)455-5436

SOUTHEASTERN GROWERS, INC. WATKINSVILLE, GA - (706)310-1151

PLANTATION TREE CO.

- SELMA, AL (334)875-9176
- 2. IF TREES ARE NOT AVAILABLE AT THE INDICATED NURSERIES, CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT ALTERNATIVE NURSERIES. ALL TREES OBTAINED AT LISTED NURSERIES MUST MEET ALL OF THE SPECIFICATIONS REQUIRED
- 3. ALL PLANT MATERIAL IS TO BE NATIVE TO TENNESSEE NO HYBRIDIZED CULTIVARS WILL BE ACCEPTED. NATIVE PLANTINGS ARE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS:

LM4.2 DROUGHT TOLERANT PLANTINGS:

- UTILIZE NATIVE AND ADAPTED VEGETATION THAT ARE CLIMATE-TOLERANT TO TENNESSEE AND APPLICABLE TO SUSTAINABLE DESIGN TECHNIQUES FOR ALL LANDSCAPING. SEE DEFINITIONS IN APPENDIX A FOR MORE GUIDANCE. WWW.PLANTNATIVE.ORG PROVIDES INFORMATION
- REGARDING PLANT SPECIES NATIVE TO TENNESSEE, INCLUDING SUPPLIERS.
- THE DESIGNER SHALL INSTRUCT THE CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE VERIFICATION OF CREDIT COMPLIANCE THROUGH ANY OF THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS:

A. SUBMITTALS

B. 'CONSTRUCTION ISSUE' PLANS C. 'AS BUILT' PLANS

D. OTHER APPROPRIATE RECORDS

9. DO NOT MAKE SUBSTITUTIONS. IF SPECIFIED LANDSCAPE MATERIAL IS NOT 16. WHERE INSPECTED LANDSCAPE WORK DOES NOT COMPLY WITH OBTAINABLE, SUBMIT PROOF OF NON-AVAILABILITY FROM A MINIMUM OF 6 REQUIREMENTS, REPLACE REJECTED WORK AND CONTINUE SPECIFIED SUPPLIERS TO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, TOGETHER WITH A PROPOSAL FOR MAINTENANCE UNTIL REINSPECTED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND FOUND USE OF EQUIVALENT MATERIAL PRIOR TO FINAL BID DATE. TO BE ACCEPTABLE. REMOVE REJECTED PLANTS AND MATERIALS PROMPTLY FROM PROJECT SITE.

10. SUBMIT TYPEWRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS RECOMMENDING PROCEDURES TO BE ESTABLISHED BY OWNER FOR MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPE WORK FOR 17. ANY AND ALL QUANTITIES INDICATED ON THE PLANT SCHEDULE AND ONE FULL YEAR; SUBMIT PRIOR TO EXPIRATION OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE PLAN ARE PROVIDED FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR HIS/HER OWN QUANTITY PERIOD. CALCULATION AND THE LIABILITY WHICH PERTAINS TO THOSE QUOTATIONS. 11. DELIVER PACKAGED MATERIALS IN CONTAINERS SHOWING WEIGHT, ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE CALLED TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY. ANALYSIS, AND NAME OF MANUFACTURER. PROTECT MATERIALS FROM

DETERIORATION DURING DELIVERY AND WHILE STORED AT THE SITE.

18. LOCATIONS OF ALL PLANT BEDS AND TREES TO BE STAKED AND 12. DELIVER TREES AND SHRUBS AFTER PREPARATIONS FOR PLANTING HAS APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PLANTING. BEEN COMPLETED AND PLANT IMMEDIATELY. IF PLANTING IS DELAYED MORE THAN 6 HOURS AFTER DELIVERY, SET TREES AND SHRUBS IN SHADE, 19. SCARIFY ALL TREE PITS BEFORE PLANTING. VERIFY THAT ALL TREE PITS PROTECT FROM WEATHER AND MECHANICAL DAMAGE, AND KEEP ROOTS ADEQUATELY DRAIN BEFORE PLANTING TREES. MOIST BY COVERING WITH MULCH, BURLAP, OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE MEANS OF RETAINING MOISTURE. 20. IF ROCK IS ENCOUNTERED, CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE ROCK AND PROVIDE DRAINAGE AWAY FROM EACH TREE PIT.

13. DETERMINE LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND PERFORM 21. SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER BEDS TO BE PLANTED IN A TRIANGULAR WORK IN A MANNER WHICH WILL AVOID POSSIBLE DAMAGE. HAND EXCAVATE AS REQUIRED. MAINTAIN GRADE STAKES SET BY OTHERS UNTIL SPACING. SEE PLANTING SCHEDULE FOR DISTANCES. REMOVAL IS MUTUALLY AGREED UPON BY PARTIES CONCERNED.

14. PROVIDE 24" OF NEW TOPSOIL TO ALL PLANTING AREAS PER LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S SPECIFICATIONS. OBTAIN TOPSOIL FROM SOURCES LISTED IN 23. REFER TO PROJECT MANUAL REGARDING TREE FERTILIZATION AND PRUNING. SPECIFICATIONS.

15. BEGIN MAINTENANCE IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING. MAINTAIN TREES, 24. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS TO BE IRRIGATED WITH FULLY AUTOMATED SHRUBS, AND OTHER PLANTINGS BY PRUNING, WATERING, CULTIVATING IRRIGATION SYSTEM. IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO USE EXISTING WATER SOURCE AND WEEDING AS REQUIRED FOR HEALTHY GROWTH. RESTORE PLANTING ON SITE. BACK FLOW PREVENTER, CONTROLLER AND METER TO BE SAUCERS. RESET TREES AND SHRUBS TO PROPER GRADES OR VERTICAL PROVIDED. POSITION AS REQUIRED. SPRAY AS REQUIRED TO KEEP TREES AND SHRUBS FREE OF INSECTS AND DISEASE. MAINTAIN LAWN BY WATERING, FERTILIZING, WEEDING, MOWING, TRIMMING, AND OTHER OPERATIONS SUCH AS ROLLING, REGRADING, AND REPLANTING AS REQUIRED TO ESTABLISH A SMOOTH, ACCEPTABLE LAWN, FREE OF ERODED OR BARE AREAS.

PLANTING SCHEDULE

TREE	Plant Key	Botanical	Common	Height	Spread	Cal.	Spacing	Quantity	Remarks
	AO	Acer rubrum `October Glory`	October Glory Red Maple	12'	5'	4"	As shown	1	Dense, well-branched, full crown
	AS	Acer saccharum	Sugar Maple	12'	5'	4"	As shown	21	Dense, well-branched, full crown
	BN	Betula nigra	River Birch	10'	5'	3"	As shown	3	Dense, well-branched, full crown
	СС	Cercis canadensis	Eastern Redbud	8'	4'	3"	As shown	26	Multi-branched, single-trunk specimen
	NS	Nyssa sylvatica	Sour Gum	8'	4'	3"	As shown	13	Dense, well-branched, full crown
	QN	Quercus nuttallii	Nuttall Oak	10'	5'	4"	As shown	14	Dense, well-branched, full crown
	UP	Ulmus americana `Princeton`	American Elm	12'	4'	4"	As shown	8	Matched, full crown
SHRUBS	Plant Key	Botanical	Common	Height	Spread	Cal.	Spacing	Quantity	Remarks
	CJ	Cryptomeria japonica	Japanese Cedar	6'	3'		15'o.c.	7	Full to base, heavy
	FG	Fothergilla gardenii	Dwarf Fothergilla	24"	24"		36"o.c.	58	Dense, full, matched
	IG	Ilex glabra	Inkberry Holly	30"	24"		36"o.c.	99	Dense, full, matched
	IN	llex x `Nellie R. Stevens`	Nellie R. Stevens Holly	6'	4'		10'o.c.	3	Full to ground, dense, well- branched
	IL	Itea virginica `Little Henry` TM	Virginia Sweetspire	24"	24"		36"o.c.	210	Dense, full, matched
						_			
GRASSES	Plant Key	Botanical	Common	Height	Spread	Cal.	Spacing	Quantity	Remarks
	СК	Calamagrostis x acutiflora `Karl Foerster`	Feather Reed Grass	24"	24"		18" o.c.	162	Well-rooted, mature
	CS	Carex stricta	Tussock Sedge	24"	24"		18" o.c.	227	Well-rooted, mature
	JE	Juncus effusus	Soft Rush	24"	24"		18" o.c.	309	Well-rooted, mature
	LM	Liriope muscari `Big Blue`	Big Blue Lilyturf	18"	18"		12" o.c.	569	Well-rooted, mature
	PN	Panicum virgatum `North Wind`	Northwind Switch Grass	30"	12"		18" o.c.	1032	Well-rooted, mature
PERENNIALS	Plant Key	Botanical	Common	Height	Spread	Cal.	Spacing	Quantity	Remarks
	СМ	Coreopsis major	Whorled Coreopsis	24"	24"		18" o.c.	117	Full, well-rooted
	IC	Iris cristata	Cream Iris	24"	24"		12"o.c.	128	Full, well-rooted
	RH	Rudbeckia Hirta	Black-eyed Susan	24"	24"		18" o.c.	453	Full, well-rooted

TDU WORKSHEET

TREE DENSITY UNIT (TDU) WORKSHEET (Ordinance 94-1104) REV Sept-2019

Date	11/22/2019]	
Мар	Parcel				
Application Nu	mber				
Project Name	3040 SIDCO DRIVE				
Address					
				-	
Acreage (area d	of parcel including building site)		7.22]	
Minus Building Coverage Area			4.68]	
Equals Adjusted Acreage		(=)	2.54		
				All but Single	
Multiply by Required Tree Density Unit per acre			22	Family and 1	
choose one				& 2 Family	

choose one

Required TDU for Project

DBH	# of Trees	Value	TDU	RETAINED	TREE(S)
8"		x 3.2	0	DBH	# of Tr
10"		x 4.0	0	6"	
12"		x 4.8	0	8"	
14"		x 5.6	0	10"	
16"		x 6.4	0	12"	
18"		x 7.2	0	14"	
20"		x 8.0	0	16"	
22"		x 8.8	0	18"	
24"		x 9.6	0	20"	
eater thar	n 24" equals DBH	x .5 per inch		22"	
		tota	al 0		

RETAINED TREE(S)

DBH	# of Trees	Value	TDU
24"		x 8.4	0
26"		x 9.1	0
28"		x 9.8	0
30"		x 10.5	0
32"		x 11.2	0
34"		x 11.9	0
36"		x 12.6	0
38"		x 13.3	0
40''		x 20.0	0
		total	0

DBH	# of Trees	Value	TDU	
2"	0	x .5	0	
3"	42	x .6	25.2	
4"	44	x .7	30.8	
5"		x .9	0	
6"		x 1.0	0	
7"		x 1.2	0	
8"		x 1.3	0	
		total	56	
add total to line 7				
XAMPLES but not limited to:				

Mature hei	ght greater than 30'
Evergreen-	Am. Holly, So. Magno
Jeciuuous-	Oak, Maple, Poplar, I

6 Total TUD Retained on-site

7 Total TDU for Replacement Trees- On-site 8 Total Credits Paid to Tree Mitigation Bank*

9 **Total Density Units Provided**

All Retained and Replacement trees must be shown on site plan. Trees not protected in accordance with 17.24.110 - Protection of trees during development activities, cannot be counted towards TDU. Canopy Street Trees with less than 600 c.f. or Understory with less than 400 c.f. root volume receive no TDU credit. * Tree Bank cannot be used for Buffer, Screening, Frontage, Perimeter or other requirements. Only for balancing Required TDU.

22. PROVIDE TRUE RADII FOR THE LAYOUT OF ALL PLANT BEDS.

add total to line 6

(=) 55.88

add total to line 6

ar, Planetree, Gingko

gnolia, Pine, Hemlock, Spruce, Cedar



The total density units provided (line 9) must equal or exceed the requirements of line 5 above.

add total to line 6

TDU

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

RETAINED TREE(S)					
DBH	# of Trees	Value	TDU		
42"		x 23.1	0		
44"		x 26.1	0		
46"		x 27.6	0		
48"		x 28.8	0		
50"		x 30.0	0		
52"		x 31.2	0		
54"		x 35.1	0		
56"		x 36.4	0		
58"		x 37.7	0		
60''		x 42.0	0		
		total	0		

Single Family and 1

Value

x 1.8

x 2.4

x 3.0

x 3.6

x 4.2

x 4.8

x 5.4

x 6.0

x 6.6

total

& 2 Family

DBH # of Trees

add total to line 6

REPLACEMENT TREE(S)- LARGE & MEDIUM <u>COLUMNAR</u> , SMALL UNDERSTORY TREES and STREET TREES*					
DBH	# of Trees	Value	TDU		
2"		x .25	0		
3"		x .3	0		
4"		x .4	0		
5"		x .5	0		
6"		x .5	0		
7"		x .6	0		
8"		x .7	0		

total 0 add total to line 7

EXAMPLES but not limited to:

Columnar (Fastigiate)-Deciduous: Slender Silhouette Sweetgum, Arnold Tulip Poplar, Princeton Sentry Gingko Understory Deciduous-Deciduous- Redbud, Dogwood, Flowering Cherry, Japanese Magnolia, Japanese Maple **Understory Evergreen-** Dwf. Magnolia, Hybrid Holly, Cherry Laurel (tree form) Mature height avg. 30' or less.

Small Understory Columnar varieties receive no TDU credit

	AC 11/2	22/2	019
S	2606 EU NASHVILLE TEL:	GENIA A TN 3721 615.645	ENGINEERING DESIGN CONSULTING VENUE 1 SUITE D .1560

NE

Ō

SIDCO

0

304

CAP STREE

FORSTONE C 750 EAST MAIN S STAMFORD CT

DATE: 09/23/19 SCALE: 1" = 30' DRAWN BY LV REVIEWED BY: RJ

SHEET NUMBER:

L5.







L5.20

SHEET NUMBER: